"Resource Number: 5DA2715

Architectural Inventory Form

Temporary Resource Number 775

24.

Associated buildings, features, or objects:
None.

IV. ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY

25.

26.
27.
28.

29.

30.

Date of Construction:  Estimate: 1888 Actual:

Source of Information: Record Journal of Douglas County - RIDC, September 26, 1913, pg. 4; Castle Rock
Journal - CRJ, September 2, 1891, pg. 1, and, 1890 & 1895 Sanborn Map

Architect: Unknown Source of Information:
Builder: Unknown Source of Information:
Original Owner: Moritz Geradehand

Source of Information: Douglas County Clerk and Recorder

Construction History:

August 1902  Jacob Benedickt painted/decorated the front of the store (CRJ, 8/15/1902, pg. 5)

March 1921  Two-story addition to the building and also installed a Majestic Hot Top Smokeater range with
two ovens, a Majestic Dish Washing machine, and a Majestic One Compartment sink. (RIDC, March 11, 1921, pg.
1, and pg. 4).

February 1923 New sign installed. First electric sign in Castle Rock - stated "Eat" (RIDC, February 23, 1923, pg.
4)

1930-1938 New sign installed.

1940 New sign installed.

1947 New sign installed.

Unknown Mansard rood constructed on the building facade.

Circa 1990s  Historic storefront modified and faux balcony and pediment installed.

Circa 2006 Rhyolite stone painted green.

Original Location:  Yes Date of Move: N/A

V. HISTORICAL ASSOCIATIONS

3L
33.
34.
35.

Original Use: Commerce/Trade/Specialty Store Intermediate Use: Commerce/Trade/Restaurant
Current Use: Commerce/Trade/Restaurant/Bar

Site type(s): Shoe Store, Bakery, Restauarant, Bar

Historic Background:

Building Owners

1888 - 1915 Moritz Geradehand (land only)

1915-1917 Edward C., Clara H. and Emma E. Geradehand (nephew and nieces of Moritz)
1917-1919 Peter H. Miller

1919 David Cramer (included Lots 10 and 11)

1919-1932 Ella Clark (includes party wall agreement w/ Lot 11)

1932 -1942 Christina Berger

1942 -1943 Anna C. Bagnell and Frances A. Wisenhunt (grandaughters of Christina Berger)
1943 -1944 Ross and Alberta King

1944 - 1946 Edwin Wilson and Evelyn Doris Creeley

1946 Evelyn Doris Creeley

1946 - 1963  Philip S. Milier and Harold A. Senter

1963 - 1965 Roland W. Peterson

1965-1981 Roland W. and Marjorie D. Peterson

1981-1995 George E. and Betty J. Winkler

1995 -2005 Minja Yun aka Minja Yoon
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2005 -2010 Juan and Silvia Gonzales
2010 - Present Bayview Loan Servicing, LLC

Businesses in the Building

1890 Saloon (1890 and 1895 Sanborn Map)

1895  Saloon and Billiards (1895 Sanborn Map)

1899-1901 Saloon - managed by Andrew Anderson (Castle Rock Journal, 3/3/1899, pg. 3; CRJ, 3/9/1900, pg.
3; CRJ 4/5/1901, pg. 5)

1901-1903 Bakery and Meat Market - managed by August Jensen (CRJ, 9/13/1901, pg. 5; CRJ, 10/25/1901,
pg. 2; CRJ, 1/31/1902, pg. 4; CRJ, 2/21/1902, pg. 5; CRJ, 3/14/ 1902, pg. 5)

1903 - 1907  Shoe and Boot Store - managed by Moritz Geradehand (CRJ, 7/3/1903, pg. 8; CRJ, 11/15/1907, pg.
4)

1907 -1911  Tunnicliff Dry Goods Store (CRJ, 7/31/1908, pg. 1; Record Journal of Douglas County, 12/1/1911,
pg. 1)

1911-1913 Empty - used for Ladies Guild Sales periodically (RIDC, 8/30/1912, pg. 5)

1913-1916 W. R. Davis Notions and Millinery Store (RIDC, 3/6/1913, pg. 5; RIDC, 3/14/1913, pg. 5; RIDC,
2/21/1913, pg. 1; RIDC 4/28/1916, pg. 5)

1916-1917 Carney Mercantile Store (RIDC, 4/28/1916, pg. 5; RIDC, 6/30/1916, pg. 5; RIDC 1/19/1917, pg. 4;
RIDC, 10/12/1917, pg. 5)

1917 -1919 Eichling Dry Goods Store (RIDC, 10/12/1917, pg. 5; RIDC, 12/26/1919, pg. 4; RIDC, 7/4/1919, pg.
1)

1919 A.Z. Clark Restaurant (RIDC, July 4, 1919, pg.1; RIDC, 3/11/1921, pg. 1)

1921-1926 Courthouse Café (Telephone Books; RIDC, October 22, 1926, pg. 2)

1926 -1938 Fuller's Café (RIDC, October 22, 1926, pg. 5; Telephone Books; RIDC, December 24, 1937, pg. 4)
1938-1939 Castle Rock Café/Lynn Café (Telephone Books)

1939-1940 Lynn Café/Cliffs Café (RIDC April 26, 1940, pg. 4; see photo Douglas County History Research
Center - 20010760007)

1940-1944  Cliff's Café (RIDC, 4/26/1940, pg. 4; RIDC, April 25, 1941; Telephone Books)

1945-1946 Ted's Café (Telephone Books)

1947-1950 Ray's Café (Telephone Books)

1952 L & W Café (Telephone Books)

1953 Ray's Café (Telephone Books)

1957 Dillon Café & Bar (Telephone Books)

1959-1963 Rock Inn (Telephone Books)

1964 - 1996 Sportsman's Lounge (Telephone Books)

1996 Building was empty

1997 Musician's Choice

2005 Building was empty

2006 - 2010 La Espiga Mexican Bakery and Restaurant

Moritz Geradehand was born in Germany around 1849. He was trained as a shoemaker and immigrated to the
United States around 1873. By 1880, he was living in Castle Rock and his occupation was as a shoemaker. He
married around 1889 to Gustina, last name unknown. Moritz and his wife owned property in Rock Ridge and
Case and also a residence on Cantril Street. He returned to Germany in 1906, and moved to Imperial Beach,
California in 1911, where he had family. It may have been a summer home, because additional newspaper
articles still talked about his store in Castle Rock. He passed away in December 1915 in Imperial Beach,
California. Moritz and Gustina never had children, so the property was transferred to his nieces and nephew
living in California. The building was sold to Peter Miller in 1917.

Scheuber + Darden Architects 10800 E. Bethany Drive, Suite 380
Aurora, Colorado 80014 * 303-755-7395



'Resou rce Number: 5DA2715

Architectural Inventory Form

Temporary Resource Number 775

Peter H. Miller was born in 1875 in Switzerland and immigrated to the United States. By 1910, he was living in
the James and Katie Fetherolf household and was working as their cook. Little else is known about Peter, except
he sold the building to David Cramer in 1919.

David Cramer was from Williamsport, Pennsylvania and was the uncle of J. Cramer of Castle Rock. Mr. Cramer
also purchased the adjacent property - 308 Wilcox (5DA2714) so that his nephew could move into that building
and he could sell this building to A. Z. Clark who was occupying 308 Wilcox. A. Z. Clark's wife, Ella, was the
official purchaser of the property though. A. Z. and his wife, Ella, moved from Colorado Springs in 1918 to
purchase the Courthouse Café from J. C. Moore. By 1919, they had opened the A. Z. Clark Restaurant at this
address. The restaurant name was the Courthouse Café and remained in business until 1926. During Clark's
tenure, the restaurant was the primary meal provider for the jail inmates. They remained owners of the
building, but it is believed that the business changed hands in 1926, as the name changed to Fuller's Café. The
Clarks, when they sold the building in 1938 to Christina Berger, were living in El Paso County.

Claes Berger, Christina Berger's husband, while living in Golden on Platte Street, married Christine Boding and
lived there unitl April 27, 1896 when they moved and settled on a ranch five miles south of Castle Rock near
Tomah Road. They lived on this ranch until April 1912 when they moved to 518 Wilcox Street (5SDA.1234). Claes
died from complications of a stroke on Febraury 6, 1915. Christina remained living at518 Wilcox until her death,
April 22, 1942. Little else was found in the newspapers or the genealogy websites, except that she entertained
frequently. When she passed away, her last will and testament left this property to her grandaughters, Anna C.
Bagnell and Frances A. Wisenhunt. A search through the newspapers and the genealogy websites found nothing
on her grandaughters, other than we know that they both lived in Douglas County. They only owned the
property for a year before they sold it to Alberta and Ross King.

Ross King was born around 1906 in Kansas to Moses and Josie King. His brother Harold was also born in Kansas,
but soon after his birth, they moved to Arvada, Jefferson County, Colorado (1910 U. S. Federal Census). They
were living on West 3rd Street and his father was working as a laborer at a lumber yard. By 1920, the family had
moved to Spring Valley where his father became a farmer (1920 U. S. Federal Census).

Ross and Alberta married around 1930 and settled in Denver on South Pennsylvania Avenue (1930 U. S. Federal
Census). He was a manger of a grocery store at the time. By 1933, they had moved to Castle Rock where they
settled into this bustling community (RIDC, 9/8/1933, pg. 5). It is not clear what Ross is doing, but it is
presumed he was working in a grocery. By 1935, he had become a manager for the Arapahoe Food Store in
Castle Rock (RIDC, 6/11/1937, pg. 1). In 1937, he took over ownership of the Woltzen Community Cash Store.
He renamed the store 1. G. A. Store (RIDC, 6/1/1937, pg. 5). He later changed the name to King’s Grocery —
Market, King’s Food Store, and King’s Food Market.

It is not clear whether the store remained at one location, but the King’s owned numerous properties. Beginning
in 1939 they purchased 213/215 Fourth Street. According to newspaper accounts, they lived at 215 Fourth
Street. They also owned two other residences and a business property, 211 Fourth Street (1940 — 1969), 306
Wilcox Street (1943 — 1944) and 109 Fourth Street (1946 — 1968). Alberta managed the leasing of these
properties through Want ads in the newspaper.

it is believed that the store was in the old Keystone Hotel Building. The grocery being in the center (the old
Woltzen Store location), the hotel on the east end and a hardware store at the west end (Douglas County News,
2/3/1966, pg. 5 & RIDC, 6/30/1944, pg. 5). Ross ran a very successful grocery business in the 1930s, 1940s and
early 1950s, but it is believed that he left the grocery business in the 1950s as there are no newspaper
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advertisements and there is no listing in the 1950s phone books. By 1961, Ross was back in business, believed
to be in the same location (Douglas County News, 11/23/1961, pg. 1). He remained in business for a brief period
of time until around 1963 when he finally retired from the grocery business. He and his wife did not remain idle
for long as he began selling cars through King Motor Company, while Alberta continued in her real estate
business by working with Wilson and Wilson Realty located at 215 Fourth Street.

Alberta passed away October 8, 1967 and Ross passed away April 4, 1968. After their death, their sons Earl and
Paul Wayne Ross took ownership of the properties.

Alberta and Ross only owned this property for one year and then sold it to Edwin Wilson and Evelyn Doris
Creeley. They only owned the property until 1946 when they sold it to Phillip S. Miller and Harold Senter.

Harold Senter was born to Addison J. and Minnie Senter in Colby, Kansas on December 28, 1888. The family
moved to a small farm in North Platte, Nebraska in 1894 while his father worked for the Union Pacific Railroad.
In 1908, the family moved to Denver, where Harold's father started the Senter Pie Company. Harold graduated
from East Denver High School in 1909 and attended Denver University Law School and graduated from there in
1912. In 1913, he moved to Parker to become a partner in the Parker State Bank with Frederick Hood. While
living in Parker he met Bernice Pauline Stream, daughter of Sherman and Nellie Stream of Castle Rock. They
were married on September 10, 1921 and settled in Castle Rock. Harold opened a law office, sold insurance and
later bought an abstract company. He also opened the Castle Rock State Bank in Castle Rock with Frederick
Hood, but it closed during the Depression.

Senter served in many public offices during his lifetime. He was Mayor of Castle Rock between 1930 - 1940; he
was a District Attorney; he was the County Attorney from 1943 - 1945; he was a school board member for 17
years; and he also served on the Castle Rock Town Council.

Phillip S. Miller was also a significant figure in Castle Rock. He was born in Peoria, lllinois on October 11, 1895.
His parents, Lena Kaestler Miller and Phillip Simon Miller Sr. were of German descent. Peoria was a small
farming community, where Phillip Jr. was raised until his mother developed tuberculosis and they moved to
Denver in 1906 to 1907. But to no avail, Lena, his mother, passed away on November 12, 1908. His father, a
butcher, owned the Phillip S. Miller Butcher shop in Denver and worked there until 1917. By this time, Phillip
was out of school and had begun training as a meat cutter as early as 1912, working in his father's business.
Early in 1917, Phillip and his father moved to Elizabeth with his grandmother. The family raised hogs and pigs
and opened yet another meat market.

Phillip and his father were living in Elizabeth when Phillip met and fell in love with Jessie Stewart. They had a
short courtship and married on November 3, 1919. After their marriage, they lived in a small house with a few
acres in Elizabeth. Phillip continued working with his father and took over the business when his father semi-
retired from the business. In 1920, a couple of his friends, Bill Faber and Karl Kleeman convinced him to open a
meat market in Castle Rock and Kiowa. The Miller and Kleeman Market was in Kiowa and the Miller and Faber
Market was in Castle Rock, with the Elizabeth meat market the main branch. In 1921, his partner, Bill Faber, had
to leave the business, causing Phillip to buy him out. This caused a serious hardship on the young family and
because of this, they had to consolidate the three stores and the Millers moved to Castle Rock to run the one
remaining meat market. When they moved to Castle Rock, they lived in a second floor apartment in the old
Cantril Courthouse (5DA2722) located at 324 Wilcox, but it faced Fourth Street. The store was located at the
corner of Wilcox and Fourth in the lobby of the Keystone Hotel. This building is now known as the Castle Café.
When the Millers moved to Castle Rock to work the business, they also purchased the meat businesses of
Shellabarger Company and Mikolizik's Castle Rock Mercantile. The business grew very fast and was very
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36.

successful because of the quality of meat and the prices. They soon outgrew their current location and moved
to a larger building at 320 Wilcox Street and changed the name from Millers Meat Market to the Castle Rock
Meat Market.

In 1928, he sold the meat market and opened a feed and coal business at 413 Wilcox Street. The name was
Castle Rock Fuel and Feed. Then, in 1933, he had to buy back the meat market which he owned until around
1938. Also around this time, he sold the Castle Rock Fuel and Feed to Ben Saunders. It was in 1938, that the
Miller family's lives would forever change.

Castle Rock's lack of banks was difficult for its citizens. In 1938, Phillip Miller along with several friends decided
that it was time to open a state bank. With the assistance of Josef Winkler and Louis Higby (buying a large
portion of the stock) and Phillip selling his meat market and all of his cattle, they were able to open the Bank of
Douglas County in August of 1939. Phillip Miller managed this bank until 1995, when he passed away. His other
business venture, which occurred in the 1950s was the purchase of an insurance company. He renamed the
company the P. S. Miller Insurance Agency. He relocated the business in the lobby of the bank and remained in
business for the next 30 years.

Perhaps what the Millers are best known for, though, are their philanthropic activities. Phillip Miller was a very
generous man and was always working for and donating to a cause. He and his wife, though, are best known for
establishing the Douglas County Library. After his death, the Phillip S. Miller Trust was established to provide
grants for nonprofit agencies.

It is not clear, why Miller purchased this property with Harold Senter, possibly as an income property, but they
owned it jointly for 17 years when they sold it to Roland Peterson.

The Peterson's owned the property from 1963 to 1981. It was at this time, the building became the Sportsman's
Lounge. This business remained in the building until 1996 and was a hot spot in Castle Rock for over 30 years.
Other owners of the building and business were George and Betty Winkler. George was the son of Josef
Winkler. In 1996, the famouse Sportsman's Lounge closed and the building was purchased by Minja Yun. He
sold the building to Juan and Silvia Gonzales and they opened La Espiga Mexican Bakery and Restaurant.
Sources of Information:

Douglas County Clerk and Recorder; Record Journal of Douglas County; Castle Rock Journal, Douglas County
History Research Center Photos; Telephone Books

VI. SIGNIFICANCE

37.

Local Landmark Designation: No Designation Authority: N/A
Date of Designation: N/A

38. Applicable National Register Criteria:

vl A. Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad pattern of our history;

B. Associated with the lives of persons significant in our past;

C. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, or represents the
work of a master, or that possesses high artistic values, or represents a significant and distinguished entity
whose components may lack individual distinction;

D. Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in history or prehistory.

v

Qualifies under Criteria Considerationa A through G (see Manual).
Does not meet any of the above National Register Criteria.

Criteria for Landmark Designation - Castle Rock
1. Significance. 38A.
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¥’ a. People. Associated with a person(s) significantly contributing to local, state, or national history.

b. Events. Associated with a significant local, county, state or national event(s).

V! c. Architecture.
i. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the study of a type period or
method of construction;
ii. Represents the work of a master architect or builder whose work has influenced development in the
Town, County, State or Nation;
iii. Uses indigenous materials; the use of locally quarried rhyolite being of special importance to the Town;
or
iv. Is an example of architectural or structural innovation.

¥! d. Heritage. Possesses character, interest or value as part of the development heritage or cultural
characteristics of the Town, with railroads, quarries and early development of the Town being of special
importance to the Town.
e. Archaeology. Possesses archaeological Significance or provides information important to prehistory.

v f. Age. Constructed at least fifty (50) years prior to designation.

2. Historic Integrity.

vl a. Location. The place where the Historic Property was constructed or the place where an historic event
occurred.

¥/ b. Design. The combination of elements that create the historic form, plan, space, structure and style of a
property.

¥l c. Setting. The physical environment of an Historic Property; the character of the place.
d. Materials. The physical elements of an Historic Property.
e. Workmanship. The physical evidence of the crafts of a culture and evidence of an artisan's labor and

skills.
V' {. Feeling. A property's expression of the aesthetic or historic sense of a particular time and the abiity to

convey a property's historic character.

¥ g. Association. The direct link between an historic event or person and an Historic Property.

39. Area(s) of significance: Community Planning and Develop Architecture

40.
42,

Period of significance: 1888 - 1956 41. Level of signficance: State

Statement of significance:

Associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad pattern of our history: This
building is one of the earliest remaining buildings in Castle Rock which dates to circa 1888. It has housed many
of the restaurants that have served the citizens of Castle Rock from the early 1900s and was one of the first
buildings on the square that was constructed when the town began to grow and develop. Through numerous
newspaper articles, this building was not only used as a restaurant and/or bar, but also served the citizens of
the town as a meeting place for different events and activities. This block of Wilcox sits on Courthouse Square
and has been at the heart of the development of Courthouse Square.

Architectural Style: This building is also significant for its architectural style, which is Commerical: Early
Twentieth Century. The building is constructed of rhyolite stone, unlike most early twentieth century
commercial buildings, which were brick, but Castle Rock is known for the quarry where this stone originated.
Like most Early Twentieth Century Commercial Buildings, it has very little ornamentation and had a shallow,
sloping roof with a parapet. The historic photos also demonstrate that the building had a flush entrance with
the door centered on the elevation with large display windows with transoms above on either side of the door.

On a local level, the building is significant for its identification with a significant person or persons. Moritz
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43.

Geradehand, an early land owner and business owner first owned this property and foresaw that this location
was going to be an important part of Castle Rock. Through the years, the building is also associated with M. R.
Eichling, who owned the M. R. Eichling Dry Goods Store. His store, which was at numerous locations, was
located in this building. Finally, the building is also associated with Phillip S. Miller and Harold Senter. Phillip S.
Miller, a local banker, was heavily involved in the development of Castle Rock that we see today. Harold
Senter, a local lawyer was partners with Phillip Miller and the two of them owned several buildings in this
block along with numerous buildings in the town.

Assessment of historic integrity related to significance:

The building's level of integrity, relative to the seven aspects of integrity, as defined by the National Park
Service and the Colorado Historical Society (setting, location, design, materials, workmanship, feeling and
association), is somewhat intact. The setting, location, and association are intact. Unfortunately, the
materials and the design are no longer intact. The character defining features of the Twentieth Century
Commercial Style is no longer visible. The storefront has been modified and a false balcony and pediment has
been installed. Additionally, the building has been painted green.

Because of the changes to the character defining features, this building does not have sufficient integrity to
convey its significance for National or State Register eligibility, but is still significant on a local level as a Castle
Rock landmark, because its association with several significant figures in Castle Rock, its contribution to the
development of Castle Rock and its age.

The building may also be eligible as a contributing building in a larger historic district. Further review by
Colorado Historical Society staff would be required to determine if it is contributing.

If, in the future, the building's character defining features: the central door with plate glass windows on either
side, the transom windows and the removal of the non-historic elements, this building would be eligible for
the state and national registers. Because of the plethora of photos available for this building, the
reconstruction of these elements would be fairly easy.

VIl. NATIONAL REGISTER ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT

44,

45,

46.

National Register eligibility field assessment: Not Eligible

Local landmark eligibility field assessment: Eligible

Is there National Register district potential: Yes

Discuss: This resource was surveyed and documented as part of a project in which buildings within the

downtown area of Castle Rock were surveyed. The survey area was from Front Street on the
east, to Fifth Street on the north, to Elbert Street on the west and Third Street on the south.

The boundaries of a historic district have not yet been determined since many areas of the
town have not yet been surveyed. Additionally, this building might be associated with an
adjacent unsurveyed area. A preliminary evaluation of whether this property would be a
contributing resource, if found to be within the boundaries of a district, has been made to
assist future studies.

Is there Local District Potential: Yes

If there is National Register district potential, is this building contributing: Yes

If the building is in existing National Register district, is it contributing: N/A

Vill. RECORDING INFORMATION
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47. Photographic References: 5DA2715_East Elevation; 5DA2715_South Elevation; 5DA2715_South Elevation?;
5DA2715_West Elevation.

Photographer: Barbara Darden
Negatives Filed At: There are no negatives - photos are digitally reproduced.
48. Report Title: "Town of Castle Rock - Survey of Historic Resources" (August 29, 2005); Preservation Partnership

49. Date(s): April 2010 50. Recorders: Barbara Darden
51. Organization: Scheuber + Darden Architects
52. Address: 10800 E. Bethany Drive, Suite 380, Aurora, Colorado 80014
53. Phone Number(s): 303-755-7395
NOTE: Please attach a sketch map, a photocopy of the USGS quad map indicating the resource's location, and photographs

Colorado Historical Society - Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
1300 Broadway, Denver, Colorado 80203 (303) 866-3395
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